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The Chowan County Court House stands on the north side of East King Street
about one block east of the central business district of Edenton, North
Carolina. The building faces south across East King Street toward a small
park, known as Court House Green, and the shore of Edenton Bay. 1In the
immediate vicinity of the court house are a number of the city's oldest
houses, many of them of architectural and/or historical significance.

Erected in 1767, the Chowan County Court House is a two-story building with

a T-shaped plan and a one-story semicircular apse at its center rear. The
main block of the building is approximately 68% feet wide and 30 feet deep;
the rear leg of the T is 33 feet wide and projects 17 feet. In each angle of
the main block and the rear leg is a one-story office addition, date un-
certain. The court house is constructed of brick laid in Flemish bond with
wood trim painted white.

Exterior detailing on the court house is distinctly Georgian but in general
of the simplest. The five-bay front facade is dominated by a three-bay

(33 feet) projecting pavilion topped by a classic pediment. The main
entrance, at the center of the pavilion, is flanked by Doric pilasters
carrying an entablature and a triangular pediment. Windows--9/9 sash

on the first floor, 9/6 on the second--are topped by flat brick arches.

A belt course marks the second floor line and a cornice ornamented with
modillions forms a continuous line below the hipped roof.

The most ornate exterior feature is the two-stage wooden cupola with

ogival roof surmounted by a tall weathervane. The lower stage is square

and carries a clock on each face, those on the east, south, and west

framed by open pediments supported by slender brackets. The upper stage

is octagonal and has round-arched, louvered openings set in molded surrounds
with keystones. The rear slope of the roof is broken by a slender chimney
on either side of the cupola.

The first floor of the court house is devoted almost entirely to a large
courtroom. In the semicircular apse on the rear (north) wall of this

room is a high-backed, pedimented judge's chair, similar to that in the
House of Burgesses at Williamsburg prior to 1747. The courtroom was altered
somewhat, probably between 1840 and 1850, when the original floor was
covered with wood and six columns were put in as support for the floor
above; however, the dado of the apse, the balustraded railing, and the
judge's chair are unchanged. The courtroom is flanked by two offices on

the east and an office and the stair hall on the west.

(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Chowan County Court House in Edenton, North Carolina, is a two-story
brick structure with a T-shaped plan and a one-story semicircular apse at
its center rear. Erected in 1767, the Court House is one of the most
notable Georgian public buildings in the United States and probably the
finest surviving example of the type in the Southern colonies. Maintained
in excellent condition, the Chowan County Court House is little-altered
and retains most its original interiors. The building still serves as the
county court house and is also open to visitors during regular business
hours.

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

Edenton, known as Queen Anne's Town until its incorporation in 1727, dates
from 1658 and was North Carolina's first permanent settlement. In 1715 the
colony's Assembly passed an act providing for the construction at Edenton
of a court house in which its sessions could be held. That building was
completed in 1719. The second and existing court house was erected in
1767.

The architect of the Chowan County Court House is unknown. However, it

has been attributed to Gilbert Leigh, who is believed to have come originally
from Williamsburg, Virginia, and who was living in Edenton at the time the
building was constructed. More recently, the court house has also been
attributed to John Hawkes, who was brought from England to design Governor
William Tryon's Palace at New Bern, North Carolina (completed in 1769 or
1770).

The small open space on which the court house fronts is known as Court House
Green. Reserved .as public property in 1712 when Edenton was laid out on

its present plan, the green was the site of the 1719 court house. About

the time of the American Revolution, this land was cleared for use as a
drill ground. By 1800, it had become the small park which it is today.
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The major portion of the second floor of the court house is occupied by the
assembly hall (also used as a ballroom), containing original full-height
paneling and a complete entablature. Measuring 30 by 45 feet with a 13 foot
high ceiling, this was said to be the largest paneled room in the colonies.
Individual panels, hand-carved in white pine, are 33 inches wide, 48 inches
long, and 1% inches thick. The assembly hall is flanked by a Masonic Room
(Unanimity Lodge) on the east and an office and the stair hall on the west.
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Edenton Woman's Club. Guide Book: Colonial Edenton and Chowan County
(Edenton, 1975).

Morrison, Hugh. Early American Architecture (New York, 1952).

Parramore, Thomas C. Cradle of the Colony: The History of Chowan County
and Edenton, North Carolina (Edenton, 1967).

Waterman, Thomas T. and F. B. Johnson. The Early Architecture of North
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Boundaries of the National Historic Landmark designation for the Chowan
County Court House--including the building itself and the adjacent Court
House Green--are defined as follows: beginning at the intersection of the
west curbline of Court Street and north curbline of East Water Street; thence,
westerly along the north curbline of East Water Street to its intersection
with the east curbline of Colonial Avenue; thence, northerly along the
east curbline of Colonial Avenue and its extension (the east edge of an
alley running between the County Court House and the office building next
west on East King Street) to its intersection with the southern line of
residential property located immediately north of (behind) the Chowan
County Court House; thence, easterly along said southern line extended

to the west curhline of Court Street; thence, southerly along the west
curbline of Court Street to the point of beginning.
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